1980

Club Stanyon Street, A Utah Non-Profit Membership Corporation v. Utah Liquor Control Commission : Brief of Petitioner

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE RELIEF SOUGHT

In this action, Club Stanyon Street asks this Court to determine the abuses of discretion and excesses of jurisdiction of the Utah Liquor Control Commission, to properly construe the statutes under which the Commission purported to act, to determine that the constitutional rights of the Club Stanyon Street have been violated, for an Order requiring the Commission to vacate its Order of March 7, 1979 and to further order the Commission to expunge its records with regard to the alleged violations of November 14 and 22, 1978 and for such other relief as may seem appropriate to the Court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This action began when charges were originally brought by the Liquor Law Enforcement Division of the Department of Public Safety, commonly referred to as the Liquor Division. It was alleged that on November 14 and November 22, 1978, an agent from the Liquor Division entered the premises of the Club Stanyon Street and purchased an alcoholic beverage without being a member of the Club Stanyon Street. At the time the agent allegedly entered the premises, he did not have a search warrant and did not divulge or disclose his identity or the reason for his presence to anyone within the Club, and no one within the Club was aware of such an alleged purchase until six (6) weeks after it allegedly occurred.

The purchase of alcoholic beverages is not, per se, a violation, but only the purchase of alcoholic beverages by nonmembers of the Club. Every week there are between 3,000 and 6,000 valid transactions in the Club Stanyon Street wherein alcoholic beverages are legally and lawfully sold.

Six weeks after the alleged violation, when the charges were brought against the Club Stanyon Street, the manager of the Club immediately requested

permission for his employees who were on duty on the nights in question to view the liquor agent so that they could attempt to refresh their memories as to what had transpired. In addition, counsel for Plaintiff further submitted discovery in an attempt to determine the facts so that evidence and testimony could be obtained and reviewed for the scheduled hearing. All discovery requests by the Club Stanyon Street and its counsel were ignored and no response was received thereon, and no answers to the discovery were received by counsel for Plaintiff.

A hearing was finally held on March 7, 1979 wherein the only witness to testify regarding the alleged incident was the liquor agent. Because of the time interval between the alleged incident and the time the Club was given notice of that incident, and further because there had been thousands of sales to members of the Club during that period, no officer, agent or employee of the Club had any recollection of the alleged incident and could therefore not testify regarding the specific facts alleged. In fact, they could not even testify whether the agent was or was not in the Club on any occasion (T.50).

There were, however, not even any allegations that the manager or any officer or director of the Club had anything to do with the alleged sale, but instead it was clear that if the alleged incident did occur that any unlawful sales were made by waitresses who had no managerial authority and had clearly been instructed by the management of the Club to serve drinks only to members of the Club. In fact, Mr. Roy Kohler, the manager of the Club, testified that he had issued written directions to the employees that the Club was only for the use of its members, that it was a private club where membership cards were required, that there would be no exceptions even for the personal friends of employees, and that every employee was responsible for his or her own section to insure that everyone in the section was a member or a guest of a member (T.43).

He also testified that weekly employee meetings were held wherein it was emphasized to only permit admittance or sales to members of the Club, and that he also emphasized the same thing every night when the waitress would pick up the money she would use to make change that night, and he described the repetition of those statements every night as being like a record (T.49).

The Club did in fact attempt to follow the law, and the Commission's Compliance Supervisor, Mr. Joe Coccimiglio, testified that in the eighteen months prior to the hearing the Liquor Division had performed eighteen (18) premise checks, plus two (2) open inspections of the Club, and in twenty (20) inspections of the Club, the agents noted the alleged violations involved in the proceeding plus one other violation of a similar nature which occurred on August 24, 1978. In the other seventeen (17) inspections during the prior eighteen (18) months, the agents either could not gain admittance to the Club or did not note any violations (T.42-45). In addition, after these alleged violations but before the hearing, the Liquor Division made at least three (3) and possibly four (4) additional inspections of the Club, and the agents were not able to gain admittance to the building without a membership card (T.62).

As to the alleged incidents themselves, the first alleged sale on November 14, 1978 occurred when the Club was full at about 7:30 p.m. by a waitress named Cathy (T.33-34), and Mr. Kohler testified that Cathy had been employed by the Club for about 3 to 4 years and was very conscientious (T.50). The agent testified that he had been to the Club with a member of the Club on a previous occasion (T.29-30). However, it would admittedly be speculative to attempt to determine whether or not the waitress remembered the agent from a prior visit, whether the rush of a full Club during a busy period, or whether just a mental lapse caused the incident, if it did in fact occur.

The second alleged incident occurred when the agent was allegedly served a drink by a waitress named Pamela Hendy on November 22, 1980, which was the first day that Pamela Hendy was employed by the Club Stanyon Street (T.51). Even though it was her first day of employment, if the alleged incident did occur, it was because the bartender took the order while the waitress was at the restroom, and the waitress then served the drink when she returned (T.35-36). While it may require some speculation, it is reasonable to assume that the bartender believed the waitress had already made a determination of membership while the waitress believed that the bartender had determined the agent was a member in the Club.

When the liquor agent made his alleged inspections, he did not have a search warrant (T.11 and 23) and did not, in any manner, identify himself or the purpose of his visit.

Also, at the hearing on March 7, 1979, the Commission admitted into evidence, and presumably considered in its decision, the State Toxicologist's reports on samples allegedly taken at each of the alleged incidents without any witness to testify concerning those reports or the contents or accuracy of those reports.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE ALLEGED ENTRY INTO THE CLUB STANYON STREET FOR THE PURPOSES OF ENCOURAGING AND CAUSING A VIOLATION OF THE UTAH LIQUOR CONTROL ACT CONSTITUTED A VIOLATION OF THE CLUB STANYON STREET'S RIGHTS UNDER THE FOURTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND UNDER ARTICLE I, SECTION 14 OF THE UTAH CONSTITUTION.

When the agent allegedly entered the Club Stanyon Street, he did not have, and had never obtained, a search warrant to search or inspect the premises,

and he never did present any credentials or exhibit any identification to any official or employee of the Club.

The conduct of the agent was, therefore, in violation of the Club Stanyon Street's rights to be free from warrantless searches.

The status of the law on this point was very capably summarized by Christine M. Durham, District Judge, in an unreported Memorandum Opinion issued from the Third Judicial District Court in and for Salt Lake County in the case of V-1 Oil Company, et al vs. Salt Lake City, et al., C79-75, dated the 8th day of February, 1979. Although it is somewhat lengthy, because of its quality, impartiality, and relevancy, a substantial portion of that opinion is as follows

"The constitutionality of warrantless inspections for various purposes has been reviewed several times and very recently by the United States Supreme Court. In Camara v. Municipal Court of the City and County of San Francisco, 387 U.S. 523 (1967) and See v. City of Seattle, 387 U.S. 541 (1967), the Court reviewed ordinances permitting warrantless inspections of personal residences (Camara) and of commercial premises (See). In Camara, the Court overruled Frank v. Maryland, 359 U.S. 360, which had upheld warrantless inspections for the purposes of locating a suspected public nuisance on the theory that municipal fire, health and housing programs "touch at most upon the periphery of the important interests safeguarded by the Fourteenth Amendment's protection against official intrusion" 359 U.S., at 367. The Camara Court disagreed because of the criminal processes available for enforcement of fire, health, and housing codes, as well as criminal penalties for refusal to permit inspection. The Camara Court dealt with the public interest argument, advanced by Defendants in the instant case, as follows:

. . . we think this argument misses the mark. The question is not, at this stage at least, whether these inspections may be made, but whether they may be made without a warrant . . . It has nowhere been urged that fire, health and housing code inspection programs could not achieve their goals within the confines of a reasonable search warrant requirement. Thus, we do not find the public need argument dispositive

387 U.S., 533.

In Camara, the governmental interest was described as the prevention of "even the unintentional development of conditions which are hazardous to public health and safety", 387 U.S., at 535, an interest indistinguishable from that in question in this case. Routine area inspections would not be precluded by the requirement of a warrant procedure after entry has initially been refused, the Court held, because "if a valid public interest justifies the intrusion contemplated, then there is probable cause to issue a suitably restricted search warrant". 387 U.S. at 539. The Court specifically noted that the requirement of a warrant procedure "does not suggest any change in what seems to be the prevailing local policy, in most situations, of authorizing entry, but not entry by force, to inspect". 387 U.S., at 540.

In See v. City of Seattle, *supra*, a companion case to Camara, the Court extended his holding in Camara to similar inspections of commercial premises not used as private residences. The inspection involved was a routine inspection for fire and safety hazards, and the Court held "that administrative entry, without consent, upon the portions of commercial premises which are not open to the public may only be compelled, through prosecution or physical force within the framework of a warrant procedure". 378 U.S., at 545.

Most recently, in the 1979 case of Marshall v. Barlow's, Inc., 98 S. Ct. 1816, the Court applied its holdings in Camara and See to inspections authorized by the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970. That opinion distinguishes a parallel line of cases permitting warrantless searches in certain industries which "have such a history of government oversight that no reasonable expectation of privacy could exist for a proprietor over the stock of such an enterprise". 98 S. Ct., at 1821. Liquor and firearms constitute such industries (See the Colonnade Catering Corp. v. United States, 397 U.S. 72, 1979, and United States v. Loarn Anthony Biswell, 406 U.S. 311, 1972), and a recent federal district court decision includes coal mining within that limited class. See Marshall V. Donofris, No. 78-2667, OSHR, Nov. 14, 1978, p. 1175, reported in 47 Law Week 2411. Defendants here argue that food preparation is such a heavily regulated industry, but aside from the base assertion, no facts or historical review is offered to show the kind of regulation and governmental oversight (federal in nature) found in Colonnade and Biswell, *supra*. Furthermore, the very restrictive view of such exceptions to general warrant requirements taken by the Utah Supreme Court is evidenced by two cases involving establishments which retail liquor. In Salt Lake City v. Wheeler, 466 P. 2d 838, 1970, and Utah v. Salt Lake City, The Vagabond Club v. Salt Lake City, 445 P. 2d 691, 1968, the Utah Supreme Court clearly held that a city regulatory licensing scheme involving

warrantless searches of non-profit clubs was unconstitutional (Vagabond), and that a statute permitting periodic police inspections without warrants of premises where liquor is consumed is likewise offensive to the constitutional protections afforded by the Fourth Amendment. The Court reviewed the Colonnade decision, which had just been completed by the United States Supreme Court, and concluded "the case lends no comfort to the City", 466 P. 2d, at 840. No different result can be required here, where the rationale which supported Colonnade and Biswell is even less available than it was in Wheeler and Vagabond. This Court therefore finds that Section 100-13-202, Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, is unconstitutional to the extent it permits warrantless searches of commercial premises without consent. Plaintiffs are entitled to a preliminary injunction restraining the Defendants from conducting or attempting to conduct warrantless health inspections of their gasoline station unless consent has been obtained, or from prosecuting or penalizing Plaintiffs in any fashion pursuant to related ordinances for failure to permit such warrantless inspections.

While the standards for warrantless searches by the United States Supreme Court are strict, the standards for such warrantless searches as established by the Utah Supreme Court are even more strict. In State v. Salt Lake City, (Vagabond) 21 Utah 2d 318, 445 P.2d 691 (1968) this Court said:

In the Camara case, the court observed that the question was not whether an inspection may be made, but whether it may be made without a warrant. The court held that searches of this kind "are significant intrusions upon the Fourth Amendment, that such searches when authorized and conducted without a warrant procedure lack the traditional safeguards which the Fourth Amendment guarantees to the individual, and that the reasons put forth in Frank v. Maryland, 359 U.S. 360, 79 S.Ct. 804, 3 L.Ed.2d 877 and in other cases for upholding these warrantless searches are insufficient to justify so substantial a weakening of the Fourth Amendment's protections."

In See v. Seattle, the court held that the basic component of a reasonable search under the Fourth Amendment--that it is not to be enforced without suitable warrant procedure--is applicable to business as well as residential premises. Therefore, an entry upon commercial premises not open to the public may only be compelled within the framework of a warrant procedure. (Emphasis added.)

Also, in Salt Lake City v. Wheeler, 24 Utah 2d 112, 466 P.2d 838 (1970), this Court again struck down a city ordinance which permitted warrantless searches. In Wheeler, the conduct authorized by the ordinance was nearly identical to

the actual conduct of the agent in these alleged violations. The ordinance in that case provided:

"The Police Department shall be permitted to have access to all premises licensed or applying for license, under this chapter and shall make periodic inspections of said premises and report its findings to the Board of Commissioners."

In holding that ordinance to be unconstitutional, this Court stated:

"It seems obvious from a casual reading of the ordinance that, of all the municipal agencies, the police department alone is accorded the right of entry without a search warrant, to "inspect" any or all the premises for which the license is issued, without reservation or restriction as to the private or public portions thereof, without any specified protection against a plenary power to prowl the premises. It is reasonably foreseeable that under some circumstances, where a warrantless entry may have been accomplished, an erstwhile right of an accused to suppression of evidence or his right of immunity from selfincrimination well might be foreclosed simply because the word "inspect" instead of "search" may be employed in the ordinance. Counsel implies that "inspection" may be something other than "search" in a Fourth Amendment sense. The Authorities seem to dispel any such distinction by making the two words synonymous in both the ordinary and constitutional senses. Id. at 839.

The applicable statutes and regulations purport to require the same access for liquor agents as the city ordinance in the Wheeler case required for the Police Department. Section 16-6-13.7(9), Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, provides:

". . . Any member of the council, the commission or any peace officer or investigator or examiner authorized by the commission, the council or the director of the Liquor Division of the Department of Public Safety, shall, upon presentation of his credentials, be admitted immediately to the club house or club quarters and permitted without hindrance or delay, to inspect completely the entire club house, club quarters, and all books and records of the licensee, at any time during which the same are open for the transaction of business to its members, and each member utilizing, or claiming the right to utilize, a locker as provided in subdivision (18) of this section, shall be deemed to agree and consent to permit any such person to be admitted and to inspect the contents of his locker." (emphasis added).

The Commission's own Rules and Regulations adopt the identical standard at 196-01-5.4a, which provides:

"Inspection.

Representatives of Commission, the Citizens Advisory Council, the State Division of Liquor Law Enforcement and other law enforcement agencies shall be admitted to a locker club without hindrance or delay provided they exhibit proper identification, and shall, while the club is open or while members or guests or visitors are present, have the right to inspect:

- (1) The premises of the club;
- (2) Any locker therein;
- (3) Current member and guest list and authorized guest log of the club, and
- (4) The club's current audited statement." (Emphasis added)

In view of this Court's prior decisions in Wheeler and Vagabond, supra Section 16-6-13.7(9) and Regulation A96-01-5.4 may well be invalid; however, they are not being directly challenged in this Appeal, because the liquor agent did not present any credentials or identification, and therefore the agent was not acting in accordance with the statute and regulation.

In addition to the statute and regulation, the Utah Liquor Control Commission does extract a consent form from every applicant for a license from the Commission. However, the consent form does not expressly dispense with the statutory and regulatory requirement of presenting credentials and exhibiting proper identification before entering the Club, but even if the consent form did dispense with the identification requirement, if municipalities cannot by ordinance, and the State cannot by statute, provide for a waiver of one's rights respecting warrantless searches and seizures, then the Commission certainly may not require a waiver of those rights by extracting a consent form as part of the licensing process by the threat of denial of a license. Nevertheless, the consent form as extracted only provides a consent to permit admittance to "inspect completely the entire club house, club quarters, all books and records of said corporation and any locker therein," and does not consent to a surreptitious transactional testing of the Club's procedures for preventing unauthorized purchases.

CONCLUSION OF POINT I

The conduct of the agents in this case was in violation of Petitioner's rights to be free from warrantless searches. The statute, regulations and consent form, even if permissible, do not validate the agents' conduct in this case. The Commission should be reversed and its order vacated.

POINT II

THE STATUTORY PROVISION WHICH THE CLUB STANYON STREET WAS FOUND TO HAVE VIOLATED, UTAH CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 16-6-13.1(9) DOES NOT PROSCRIBE ANY ACTIVITY OF THE CLUB, BUT ONLY PROSCRIBES THE ACTIVITY OF THE PERSON MAKING THE PURCHASE.

The Commission purported to find a violation of Utah Code Annotated Section 16-6-13.1(9). That section provides:

No person other than a member or guest who holds a valid guest card issued pursuant to the provisions of subsection 16-6-13.7(13) may make any purchase from a State store located on the premises of a social club, recreational, athletic or other kindred associations. (Emphasis added).

On its face, the subsection regulates the conduct of the persons purchasing liquor. The statute is not ambiguous; it is not vague. In fact, it is quite clear. On its face, the provision applies to any person who makes a purchase from a private club. Additionally, the legislative history supports such a construction.

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