1980

# Club Stanyon Street, A Utah Non-Profit Membership Corporation v. Utah Liquor Control Commission : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

#### ARGUMENT

##### POINT I

THE RIGHT OF A LIQUOR CLUB LICENSED BY THE STATE TO BE FREE FROM UNREASONABLE SEARCHES WAS NOT VIOLATED BY AN OFFICER OBTAINING LIQUOR DURING REGULAR HOURS.

Petitioner Club Stanyon Street (herein referred to as "Stanyon Street" and "club") as a private liquor club holds a corporate charter and liquor license in the State of Utah. Stanyon Street claims it has a constitutional right to be free from warrantless searches which was violated by officers entering the club and obtaining liquor in an unlawful sale to them as non-members. The club does not deny the sale or ask for suppression of the evidence, or that the violation be overturned, but simply states that the conduct of the

officers violated a right.

The club relies heavily on the Third District Court Memorandum Opinion of Judge Christine M. Durham in the case of V-1 Oil Company, et al. v. Salt Lake City, C-79-75, February 8, 1979. That case dealt strictly with issues arising out of criminal charges in enforcement of food preparation and health inspection ordinances at a local service station. The decision is clearly not applicable to liquor control as is the case at hand. The opinion itself recognizes the distinction:

Most recently, in the 1979 case of Marshall v. Barlow's, Inc., 98 S.Ct. 1816, the Court applied its holdings in Camara and See to inspections authorized by the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970. That opinion distinguishes a parallel line of cases permitting warrantless searches in certain industries which "have such a history of government oversight that no reasonable expectation of privacy could exist for a proprietor over the stock of such an enterprise." 98 S.Ct., at 1821. Liquor and firearms constitute such industries (See the Colonnade Catering Corp. v. United States, 397 U.S. 72, 1970, and United States v. Loarn Anthony Biswell, 406 U.S. 311, 1972), and a recent federal district court decision includes coal mining within that limited class. See Marshall v. Donofris, No. 78-2667, OSHR, Nov. 14, 1978, p. 1175, reported in 47 Law Week 2411. Defendants here [Salt Lake City] argue that food preparation is such a heavily regulated industry, but aside from the base assertion, no facts or historical review is offered to show the kind of regulation and governmental oversight (federal in nature) found in Colonnade and Biswell, supra. V-1 Oil Company v. Salt Lake City, C-79-75, 1979, Memorandum Decision by Christine M. Durham, District Judge (emphasis supplied).

Judge Durham's decision reinforces the fact that liquor is an intensely regulated industry wherein warrantless searches have much broader use and application than in the area of health and safety inspections with which she was dealing.

In addition, the club relies on two cases wherein city ordinances were successfully challenged. But those two cases are clearly different on both the facts and the law.

The Vagabond Club and the Joe Wheeler cases dealt with overly broad city ordinances which purported to allow police to inspect premises unlimited to time and unlimited to business area even to the extent of furnishing a key to the police. In the Vagabond Club the ordinance was specifically unconstitutional because of its provisions, one of which would "compel the clubs to provide a key to the police...". State of Utah v. Salt Lake City, 445 P.2d 691 (1968) at p. 696. In the subsequent Joe Wheeler case the ordinance went too far because it in effect required "...the proprietor to unlock the door at any time from the inside, - all to accomplish the same objective, - a look-see of all the premises", Salt Lake City v. Joe Wheeler, 466 P.2d 838, at p. 840. These cases are clearly not applicable to the matter at hand.

However, the fundamental question here is not whether a warrant was involved, but whether the officers' conduct was reasonable under the circumstances. Respondent submits that the

conduct of the officers in entering the club for the purpose of detecting violations and ordering a drink does not constitute a "search". However, if such conduct on the part of an officer can possibly be classified as a warrantless search or inspection, respondent submits that the conduct was in fact reasonable and therefore not in violation of any right:

The constitution only prohibits searches that are unreasonable, and the unreasonableness of the search is to be determined from the attendant circumstances. State of Utah v. Rocha, 600 P.2d 543 (1979), a p. 545.

A private club seeking the privilege from the state to deal in intoxicating liquors cannot expect the same protection regarding warrantless searches that can be expected by ordinary business because of the state's greater interest in regulating the use and sale of liquor in order to protect the public welfare:

There is a great difference in the amount of police regulation permitted where intoxicating liquor is involved as opposed to the ordinary business enterprises. The law is stated 45 Am.Jur.2d, Intoxicating Liquors, as follows:

...The power of a state to regulate or prohibit the...possession, sale, ...or use of intoxicating liquors is a matter of universal recognition.... [Sec. 23.]

\* \* \*

The state has far broader power and greater latitude to regulate and restrict the use, distribution, or consumption of liquor than to regulate or restrict ordinary business, because of the effect of

the former on the health and welfare of  
the public. [Sec. 24.]

Pride Club, Inc. v. State, 481 P.2d 669 (1971)  
at p. 670.

The purpose of the constitutional right is to protect the privacy and security of the individual against unreasonable intrusion by governmental authority. But there are exceptions where a liquor club injects itself voluntarily into the vary area that must be open to pervasive government scrutiny in order to protect the welfare of society. Warrantless inspections of premises have generally been upheld as reasonable in areas of special concern to society such as firearms, drugs or intoxicating liquors.

Certain industries have such a history of government oversight that no reasonable expectation of privacy...could exist for a proprietor over the stock of such an enterprise. Liquor and firearms are industries of this type; when a entrepreneur embarks upon such a business he has voluntarily chosen to subject himself to a full arsenal of governmental regulation.

\* \* \*

The element that distinguishes these enterprises from ordinary business is a long tradition of close government supervision, of which any person who chooses to enter such a business must already be aware. "A central difference between those cases ...and this one [Barlow's] is that businessmen engaged in such federally licensed and regulated enterprises accept the burdens as well as the benefits of their trade; whereas the petitioner here [Barlow's] was not engaged in any regulated or licensed business. The businessman in a regulated

industry in effect consents to the restrictions placed upon him." Almeida - Sanchez v. United States (citation omitted), Marshall v. Barlow's, Inc., 436 U.S. 307, 56 L.Ed.2d 305, 98 S.Ct. 1816 (1979).

Respondent submits that the conduct of the officers was reasonable in the context of the enforcement of liquor law in a closely regulated enterprise. However, if the conduct is considered a search at all it was authorized for any one of several reasons:

First, Utah liquor law expressly authorizes peace officers to enter into club rooms or meeting rooms of clubs in order to determine whether the law is being violated.

All peace officers shall have the right to enter the club rooms or meeting rooms of social clubs, recreational or athletic associations or kindred associations incorporated under the provisions of this chapter, for the purpose of determining whether any laws or ordinances are being violated therein. Section 16-6-14, Utah Code Annotated.

Second, at the time the license was granted and prior to the entry and sale to the officers, the club gave its express written consent for representatives of law enforcement agencies to enter for inspection purposes and waived its constitutional rights in connection with such inspections. See "Consent to Inspection" by Club Stanyon Street (Appendix A of this brief).

A waiver of constitutional rights even in criminal matters is considered to be a valid action where liquor is concerned:

...in a number of cases it has been held that searches for, or seizures of, intoxicating liquor, or evidence of violation of the liquor laws, without a warrant, were justified on the ground of consent to the search or a waiver of constitutional rights. 45 Am.Jur.2d, Intoxicating Liquors, 470.

Where the public has a special interest in strict control of liquor, a consent and waiver has been held valid and reasonable in light of police power of the state to control alcoholic beverages:

We agree with the Ohio court that one who applies for and is issued a permit to sell alcoholic beverages thereby assents to the reasonable and lawful conditions imposed by statute and rule and find that due to the potentiality of criminal activity in the liquor business there is no constitutional objection to requiring consent to a warrantless search as a prerequisite to the issuance of a liquor license. The State of Illinois could completely prohibit the sale of liquor, but having instead chosen to regulate it, any restriction or requirement such as consent to a warrantless search which is necessary to protect the public health, safety and morals, is a reasonable exercise of the police power of the state. Daley v. Berzanskis, 269 N.E.2d 716 (Ill. 1971) at p. 719. Cert. Denied, 91 S.Ct. 2173.

In the foregoing case, the court concluded that it was incorrect to suppress evidence obtained without a valid warrant because "Considering the nature of the business we do not believe that a close scrutiny of the operation of the

business through warrantless searches is unreasonable or arbitrary." Daley v. Berzanskis, supra, at p. 718.

Third, consent of the state to monitor compliance is clearly implicit where the club intends to subject itself to the strict liquor control laws, incorporates as a private club and then applies for and receives a license and posts a bond as required for the "faithful compliance" of all the state liquor laws. Section 16-6-13.1(1), Utah Code Annotated. Moreover, upon establishment of a state store the club officer as vendor of the state store specifically agrees to comply with the law regarding conduct of the state store and the sale of liquor, Section 32-1-37, Utah Code Annotated, as applied to a private club by Section 16-6-13.1(6), Utah Code Annotated.

In summary of Point I, the law is clear that Club Stanyon Street has no right to be free from warrantless searches only to be free from an unreasonable search under the circumstances. The conduct of the officers does not amount to a "search". Nevertheless, what was done was only reasonable under the circumstances of a liquor business so carefully licensed and closely regulated in the public interest.

## POINT II

A SALE TO A NON-MEMBER IS A VIOLATION  
OF UTAH LIQUOR LAWS BY THE CLUB.

The club contends that the liquor laws regarding sales apply only to persons purchasing liquor and therefore



the club is relieved from any responsibility for its sales. Respondent disagrees. The transfer by the licensee club to one not a member is the prohibited conduct whether called a "sale" or a "purchase". The applicable law is set forth as follows:

No person other than a member or guest who holds a valid guest card issued pursuant to subsection 16-6-13.7(13) may make any purchase from a state store located on the premises of a social club, recreational, athletic, or other kindred association. Section 16-6-13.1(9), Utah Code Annotated.

Stanyon Street's contention would warp this law to excuse the club from any responsibility for an unlawful sale. Respondent submits that the purpose of the law is to make a purchase from a club by a non-member a violation by the club for an unlawful sale. The transfer by the club is not authorized, and it is therefore unlawful for both the club and the purchaser.

The rule is found in the list of restrictions clearly applying to the operation by a licensee of a private club. Section 16-6-13.1, Utah Code Annotated. Specifically, the license and bond under which the club conducts its operation are:

...conditioned upon the faithful compliance by the non-profit corporation, its officers, agents, and employees with the provisions of this chapter and the Utah Liquor Control Act of 1969.... Section 16-6-13.1(1), Utah Code Annotated.

Also, the law regarding the responsibilities of vendors of state stores is clear. Where a state store is established

in a club, the club itself or an officer or employee of the club is the vendor and is subject to bonding for compliance under the Liquor Control Act, Section 16-6-13.1(6), Utah Code Annotated. This means that the club itself as vendor

...shall be responsible for the carrying out of the act and the regulations, so far as they relate to the conduct of such store and the sale of liquor thereat....  
Section 32-1-37, Utah Code Annotated.

Moreover, the club as vendor only "...may sell to any person such liquor as that person is entitled to purchase in conformity with the provisions of this act and the regulations ...", Section 32-1-39, Utah Code Annotated.

Moreover, it is unlawful for anyone to sell liquor except as authorized by law, Section 32-7-1, Utah Code Annotated, and the law especially emphasizes that vendors or their employees cannot sell liquor in any way not expressly authorized by law:

No person authorized to sell liquor in accordance with the provisions of this act, and no clerk, employee or agent of such person shall sell or furnish liquor in any other place or at any other time or otherwise than as authorized by this act. Section 32-7-4, Utah Code Annotated.

Clearly, taking the liquor law as a whole, with its inter-related provisions, the responsibility is directly upon the club or its officer or employee as the vendor to supervise and restrict the sale of liquor to those sales which are lawful. The club as liquor licensee must be held responsible for a violation.

To summarize Point II, in light of the clear purpose and intent of the law, allowing an unauthorized purchase is a violation by a licensee. Specifically, a licensee selling a drink to (allowing a purchase by) a person other than a member or a guest clearly violates Section 16-6-13.1(9), Utah Code Annotated, for the purposes of an administrative hearing to determine whether a license should be suspended or revoked.

Otherwise, if the club has no responsibility to limit its sales to authorized members and guests only, then sales will be made to anyone, and there would be no effective way to enforce the law. Such a free and open flow of liquor would totally destroy the concept of a private liquor club, a consequence clearly not contemplated by the strict provisions of the Utah liquor laws.

### POINT III

THE UTAH LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION HAS  
AUTHORITY TO REGULATE AND PROHIBIT UN-  
AUTHORIZED USE OF THE PRIVATE LIQUOR  
CLUB PREMISES.

Stanyon Street questions the Utah Liquor Control Commission's authority to promulgate paragraph 6.a. of Rule 5, Utah Liquor Commission Regulations:

No person shall be granted the use of the premises of a locker club except members, guests and visitors.

It is noted that the club does not contest the fact that the club allowed use for a sale to a non-member contrary

to the above rule. The claim is simply that "the Commission has no authority to regulate the activity it seeks to control". (Club's brief at page 14). In other words, the Commission has no power to prohibit persons who are not members, guests or visitors from use of the club premises for purposes of buying, storing and consuming liquor.

Respondent submits that the Commission has full authority under the law to prohibit the use of licensed premises by unauthorized persons. The law is very clear as to just what a "premises" is:

"Premises" means any room enclosure, building, or structure where alcoholic beverages may be lawfully manufactured, stored, sold, or consumed, and also includes those areas within the boundary of the private locker club. Rule A96-01-1:2.s.

This definition is consistent with the statutory definition of "premises", Section 32-1-3, Utah Code Annotated, as incorporated into the Private Club Act, Section 16-6-12.1 (1), Utah Code Annotated. The use of the premises for purposes of storing, consuming and serving of liquor is unlawful except upon permission of the state through a liquor license, Section 16-6-13.1(4), Utah Code Annotated. The commission's authority to license a premises is the authority to prescribe reasonable conditions for the use of that premises regarding alcoholic beverages. Where the club purports to be private, for the benefit of its own participating members only, a regulation

limiting the use of the premises to members, guests and visitors is reasonable in light of the purpose of the law. If any person, regardless of authority, can use the club premises, then the club ceases to be a private club and becomes essentially open to any of the public who may desire access.

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